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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO

THE MEMBERS OF

VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

(Formerly Known as VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED})

O REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of VVIP
INFRATECH LIMITED, formerly known as VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRA PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March, 31, 2024,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive incomes) and the
statement of Cash Flows for the year ended and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, the financial
O position of the Company as at 31st March 2024 and its financial performance and its

cash flows for the year ended on that date.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period.
There are no such matters which are required to be addressed in the context of our
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.




OTHER INFORMATION

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the Information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's report including Annexure to Board
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Information.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’) with respect to
the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive incomes and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Standalone financial statemenis that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under o
the Act.




Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial contro! relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controis.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material unceriainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evalug ct of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with —relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, the financial position of the Company
as at 31%' March, 2024 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”} issued
by the Central Government of India vide Order number S.0.849(E) dated 25"
February 2020 in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure — A & Note No.26, a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order,

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which fo the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit:

b) [n our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books:

c} The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:




e)

a)

h)

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act;

In our opinion, the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls are adequate in
commensurate to the size of the business.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation
given to us;

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
company.

iv. (&) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested any funds
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of Funds) or in any other persons or entities including foreign entities
with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise that the
intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b) That no funds have been received by the company from any persons
or entity including foreign entities with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall direclly or
indirecily, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsocever by or on behalf of the funding Party e any




(c) That we had considered reasonable and appropriate audit procedures,
in the circumstances based on such audit procedures nothing has come
to our notice that caused us to believe that the representations under sub
clause (a) and (b) contain any misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year as
per section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.

vi. The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which
have a feature of recording audit frail (edit log) facility and the same has

O operated from 7th April 2023 for all relevant transactions recorded in the
respective software.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled, we
did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.

For Rishi Kapoor & Company
arzered Accountants

Place: Ghaziabad
Date : 25/06/2024

=7
o b&’f('Rishi Kapoor)

Partner
M.No.075483
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors Report to the Nembers of the
Company on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March
2024, we report that:

i. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company in respect of its Property, Plant &
Equipments and Intangibles:

{a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The Company is having Intangible Assets as on the date of Balance Sheet and
the provisions of clause 3(i)(a)(B) is duly complied by the company.

{(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management as told to us at regular intervals and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification and the same have been properly dealt with the books
of accounts. In our opinion, this period of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets;

(c) The company is having immovable properties shown in the Investment and title
deeds of immovable properties are in the name of the company. Further there is No
dispute on the said immovable properties as told by the management of the
company.

(d} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The
Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Therefore the provisions of
clause 3(i){d) are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
henami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act nd rules
made there under.
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Vi.

vii.

In our opinion on the basis of information and explanation given to us in respect of
its inventories :

{(a} The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management and

the frequency of verification is reasonable. The procedures of physical verification of
inventories followed by the management were reasonable and adequate in relation
to the size of the company and nature of its business. The Company has maintained
proper records of its inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification, The Inventories are valued, verified as well as certified by the
management of the company.

(b)The Company has taken working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in

aggregate from banks and other financial institutions on the basis of primary security
of current assets and therefore the provisions of clause 3(ii)}(b) are applicable to the
company. As fold and certified by the management of the company, all the
stalements submitted by the company are in the agreement with the books of
account.

The Company has made investments in but not provided any guarantee and or
security or granted loans or advances during the year in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Parinerships or any other
parties. Therefore the provisions of clause 3(iii) are applicable to the company,
however there is no adverse comment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has compiled with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2015
with regard to the deposits accepted are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of cost
audit under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are applicable to the company.
However, the management has told that the Cost Audit is under Process and the
report is yet to be finalized by the Cost Auditor,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund, ESI,
income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, VAT and any
other material statutory dues have been generally/regularly deposited during the
year by the Company with the appropriate authorities and there_are.ng outstanding

months from the date they become payable.
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(b)There are no dues as referred o in sub clause (a) above, which have not been
deposited on account of any disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there
are no fransactions which have not been recorded in the books of account on
account of surrender or undisclosed income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to financial institution or banks
and debenture holders.

{b) In our opinion and according fo the information and explanation given to us, the
company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has duly applied its term loans for the purpose for which the said loans
were obfained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not applied funds raised on short term basis for long term purposes.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not taken funds from entity or person on account of or to meet the
abligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments)

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and
explanations given by the management, the company has raised money in
accordance with the provisions of section 42, 62(c} and other applicable provisions
of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, by way of preferential
allotment / private placement of shares (Fully Paid up), however the company has
not issued any convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the year.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company,
carried in accordance with the auditing standards generally acceplod in India, we




Xii.

O i

xiv.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company,
carried in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India, we
have not filed any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
during the year the Company have not received any whistle blower complaints.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
Management has approved all fransactions with related parties, hence, are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details
have been disclosed in the Financial Statemenis as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

{a) In our opinion, prima facie, the company has an adequate internal audit system
which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and
explanations given by the management, Provisions for Internal Audit are not
applicable on the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash
fransactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3{xv) of the Order are not applicable to the company and hence
not commented upon.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and
explanations given by the management, the Company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of claysesxvi)(c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not com : !
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Place: Ghaziabad
Date : 25/06/2024

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Group has no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xvi){d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial
year and in the immediately preceding financial Year.

That during the year, there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable {o the
Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on
the basis of events, financial ratios, ageing and expecied dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, no material uncertainty seems to exists as on the date of
the audit report and the company seems to be capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, however we could not comment about the future
viability of the company.

(a) The Company has created CSR obligation during the year and is liable to spent
the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) within one year
from the end of the financial year and thus as on date, there is no unspent CSR
amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section
(6) of section 135 of the said act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the
Order is applicable for the year.

(b) The Company is not required to transfer unspent Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) amount, to a special account before the date of report and hence provision of
section 135(6) of the Act are not applicable.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has subsidiaries but no holding companies
and thus consolidation is applicable on the company and the provisions of clause
3(xxi) of the Order are applicable to the Company and duly complied.

For Rishi Kapoor & Company
ed Accountants

Partner
M.No.075483



Mis VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
{Formerly known as Ws WSHOR VAIBHAV INFRA FRIVATE LIMITED)
T CIN ; U45201UP2003PLC136919
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315t MARCH, 2024

Placo : Ghazlabad

Date :25/06/2024

uoin: 24 0IECUE 3RL RILOGULY

M.Ho. ACS-T0481

{1 Lakhs}
AS AT AS AT
PARTICULARS NOTE NO. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
I. EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1. SHAREHOLDER' FUNDS
a Share Capilal 1 1838.77 60.53
b Resarves & Surplus 2 603470 £876.22
¢ Money received against Share Warrants - - -
2. SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTRENT - . -
3. NOM CURRENT LIABILITIES
a Long Term Barmowings 3 407.23 1770.12
b Defemed Tax Lizblilles (Me1) - - -
¢ Other Long Term Liabiies 4 1402.57 127052
d Long Term Provisions 5 90.15 -
4. CURRENT LIABILITIES
a Shor Term Bosrewings B 2730.19 1277.54
O b Trade Payaties - 7
{i) Tatalouistanding duas of MSME 338.37 1506.45
[f) Totaloutstanding dues of olhes than MSME 1606.55 1353.711
¢ OQlher Currant Llabdilins B 280.96 141,70
d Short Tem Provistons ] B634.50 340.00
Total 15363.9% 13597.30
. ASSETS
1. HON CURRENT ASSETS
a Property,Fian & Equipment and Intangible Assels
[} Propenty.Plant & Equipmen? 10 275,53 317.81
(ii} Intangible Assels 10 6.38 11.50
(i) Copital Work In Progress - - -
{v} tr1angible Assels Under Development - - -
{v) Fixed Assets held for Sale - - -
b Mun Cument Investments 11 227444 226946
¢ Defermed Tox Assals (Nef) 12 41.57 34314
d Long Term Loans & Advances - - -
o QOther Non Curren! Assels 13 0891 411.89
4. CURRENT ASSETS
a Cureent Invesiments . - -
b Invenlodes 14 420045 2568.08
O ¢ Trade Recelvables 15 72184 A685.75
d Cash & Cash Equivalents 16 25919.25 2666.71
o Shoit Term Loans & advances 17 571.51 48237
f Other Cument Assels 18 944.12 1129.35
Tolal 15363.99 13557.30
Slgnificant Accaunting Pellcios & Hotes on Accounts 26 - -
In tarms of our reporct attached For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors
Far Rishl Knponr& Company or VVIP Infratech Ltd.
d dccountapls For VIP INFRATECH LIMITED
C anaging Dirget-
ishi€apoor) (rravoon G3gMaN
Partner Chalrman & Diroclor “F Manafding Diractor
or VB
M.N.075483 For WIP ]nts@_@pgugp pPeTERCH LIMITED
/ -
h“ Jhaud Waks
{Prashant Wah()
[+ mpany Sncma Iy CFO CFO

PAN :AAWPW25919G




hUs VVIP INFRATECH LINITED
(Formory knawn as s VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRA PRIVATE LINITED)
CIH < U45201UP200IPLCY 36919

- STATEMENT OF PROFIT AKD LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED J1st MARCH, 2024
{¥tn Lakhn)
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
PARTICULARS HOTE KO, ENDED ENOED
31.03.2024 .0)2023
L CONTINUING OFERATIONS
1 REVENUE FRON OPERATIONS {NET} 18 2148823 147G7.15
2 Otherincome 20 151.68 11D.29
Total lnzome ' Tow 26308y — BT
3 EXPENSES
a Costof Revenys Oparaticnsy il 1892024 1425268
b Furchass of Stock In Tradoe - - -
¢ Changn i inventones of Frushed Goods, 2 174230 «1525.00
WWork In Progress & Stock tn Trada
d Employro Banahl Expansas 2 24758 23025
o Financo Coals 24 350.50 23764
f Dopreciation & Amortisation Expenses 1% 100.61 €937
G Other Exponses b1 arize g
Tow _____tem3e — s
4 Profit F {Losy) bafore Exceplional & Extraordnary Hems Tatal 235094 132838
& Tax {[1+2)-3}
O 3 Exceptony ltems - -
L Profd # {Loss) belora Extracrdinary (tems & Tax (4+45) Total 2350.54 1328.38
7 Extragedinary ltema . .
3 Profd § {Losa) belone Tax (E+7) Tota) 2150.54 132838
9  Tax Expinses )
a  Current Tax Expanses for Cument Yoar 625,50 340.00
b MAT Credi (Whens appbcabia) - -
¢ Cimment Tox Expenses Relding to Prier Yoars 2920 4525
d Mol Cument Tox Expansas 857.70 38525
s Doferod Toax Assot 12 128 222
Tatat 65045 382,92
10 Prfit £ {Los3) from Continuing Operations (844 9) 170049 94546
11 Profi # {Loss) from Distontinuing Operaticns Boforo Tax - -
12 TaxE of Discontinuing Op . .
1 Prabit £ (Loss} from Giscontinuing Operations After Tax {11+/-12) - .
14 Proft f (Loss) Fev the Yaar (10+513) Tobal 110049 54540
45 Eaming per Share {of Re. 13- 0ach):
& Basic 10.48 15820
b Dvstad 1648 155.20
Weighted Average Number of shares used in camputing
carning per share
2 Basc (Nas) 10216198.00 605300,00
b Dhhted {Nos) 16316198.00 £05100.00
Significant Accounting Pollcles & Noteas on Accounts 26
In tarms of our repost attached Fo¢r and on behalf of lhe Boan:l:!ﬁln

For WIP INFRATECH LIMITED

(Praver (Vaibbdy Tyagl)
Chalnnan &f&z {l'ﬁ'man Managfng Clreetor

Din ; 01797550
For WviP ﬁ“fﬁéfé Ltd. ligr WIP INFRATECH LIMITED

5;% ~Lb\ou«:!: Wau
mm {F shant Wahi)

l.'.‘umpa ny Sdcmluw CFQ CFO
NHo. ACS-T0481 PAN :ARWPW2919G

Place : Ghazfabad

Date

wo: fzsi:{mon%zj'\-l ARKATLO 61 8Y




s WWIP INFRATECH LIMITED
[Formerly known as bUs VIBHOR VAIBHAY INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

»HOTES ON ACCOUNT (¢ In Lakhs}
AS AT 31.03.2023 AS AT 11,03,2023
Hola He. -1 Numbar Amount Numbey Amount

A SHARE CAPITAL
a AUTHORISED CAPITAL

Equily shares sf Rs. 10/ each wilh voling Aghls 25000000 2500.00 1000000 100.00
Total 25000000 2500.00 1000000 100.00
b IS5UED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID UP CAPITAL
Equily shares of Rs. 10 each wilh voling rights 18387700 1830.77 605300 £0.53
Tola) 18387700 1838.77 505300 60,53
B Reconcliation of the number of shares and asmount outs ol tho beginning and at he end of the repati fod:
Parliculars Equity Shares Amount Equity Sharas Amount —
Equity shares oustanding ai the beglnning of the year 605300 8053 603300 60.53
Bonus Shaso Issued during the yrar 16948400 1694.84 - -
Share lssued during Lhe year 634000 8340 - -
Shar Bought back during Lhe year . . - -
Equity shares custanding at e end of the year 18387700 1838.77 605300 6053
(i) Cetalls of sharos held by each shareholder holding more Lhan 5% sheres:
As at 31 March, 2024 As at 34 March, 2023
O Class of sharas ! Nama of shareholdor Humberof % holdinginthat Numberof % holding In it
sharas hald  classofshares  sharos held class of sharea

A3 Por Annaxuro "A" Attachod
(i0) Detads of share holding of Lhe Promslors:
Az at 31 March, 2024 Az at 31 Mazeh, 2023
holding in % holding In
Hame of tho Promator Rumberof % Humbor of
thatclassof  {%) Chango thatclass of {%) Chango
shares hald shares sharas held sharas
As Par Annexure 8™ Altachod

Terms f rights attached to the equity shares
Tha Company has only one ¢lass of equily shares having a par value of Rs. 104 par share, Al Ihe Equity Shares camy the same rights with nespect o voling, dividends etc

tn the event of Equidalion of tho company, Lho holders uf equity shares will be enlitied to receivo remaining assats of the company, alter distfbulion of all prefereatial amounts
The distribution wili be in propertion te the number of equity shares held by tha shareholders.

Q
For WIP INFRATECH LIMITED ¢ S

Chairman

!{m VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

RS aut Wwaks
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AUs VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
{Formarly known a5 M/s VIBHCR VAIEHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

v {¥in Lakhs}
- Moto No, -2 As at MstMarch, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Share Premivm Account
Cpening Balance 60.35 60.35
Add ; Share Premiura Received during the year 265.88 -
Closing Balancse 3 60.35
Profit & Loss Account
Qpening Balance 5815.97 4870.52
Less:
Transferred 1o issue of Bonus Shares 1654.84 -
Provisian for Graluity & Leave Encashment
for Previous Years 88,16 -
Fees Pajd for Increase In Authorised Sh. Capial 18.00 -
4006.58 4B70.52
Add ; Nel Prefit 7 {tet Loss) for the year 1700.49 §45.45
Closing Balance 5707.47 581597
Tolal 5034.70 576,32
HON CURRENT LIAEILITIES
Hote Np. -3
Hon Current Currant c
O LONG TERM BORROWINGS Current Maturitles Maturities Maturitias Ntzgtu;g:: '
Secured Leans
Tarm Loans
From Banks & Financial Institutions 1685.23 35723 185.57 515.75
{List Enclosed)
From Othors
From Departments . i - - 286.28
(List Enclosed)
Unsocured Leans
From Related Parllas - - - £93.53
From Others - 50.00 - 272,55
{List Enclosed)
Total 185.23 407.23 195.57 177012
fn tha opinicn ¢f the Board of Directors, ihe company has ullfized Hs bomowings from banks, financial InstAulicns and olhers purely forthe
putpose for which it was taken.
Nate No. - 4
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Security Deposit & Sundry Payables 1402.57 127092
{List enclosed)
Total 1402.57 1270.592
O Batances of Security Deposits & Sundry Payables are subject to confirmation.
Note Ho. 5
LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Provision For Employea Benefit Expenses 90.15 -
Totaf 0.5 -
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Nate No.+6
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS <
Loans repayable on Demand QO
Secured
Fram Banks
State Bank of Indla 978.39 7a1.28
{Hypotheeation of Slock and Bock Debis)
ICICI Benk 1566.57 344.69
{Hypothecalion of Sieck and Book Dobis)
Cument Maturilles of Long Tesm Bomowing Payable with in ona year (Nole No -3} 185.23 185.57
273018 T 2mss

Total
Inihe epinion of tha Board of Directors, the company has uiiized its bomowings from banks and olher financial instiulions purely

for the purpose for which it was taken. /-\
The Board of Ditectors has informed that al statements submitted in the bank or inanefa Rl 2 2 agmcmenl with books of accounts,
‘f\. ? ihghaJiegistrar of Companies. QO‘

The Beard of Directors has informed that all the charges are duly creoted, reglsterefd

CFO

or VIP INFRATECH LIMITED
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- fole No, -7

TRABE PAYABLES-BILLED

Trade Poyablos - outstanding duas of MSME {List encipsed)
Trado Payablas - outslanding dues of Olhars {List enclosed)

Batances of Trada Payables are subject o conlirmalion,

Tha datails of (ha porties in tho form of MSME and non MSME had been provi
yoar.No Company has baen stuck off, from which the company has dong any

Mis VWIP INFRATECH LIMITED
(Fermerdy knawn as Mia VIBHOR VAIBHAV [NFRA PRIVATE LIITED)

Toiaf

Tho Board of Dizectors had infoemad that thiry had frealed accsunling date 05 duo dato foe agalng purpose.

Trade Payables ageing achodule ¢

As at J1st March, 2024

228,37
1606.55

1544,82

{€in Lakhas)

As ot 31st March, 2023

1506.45
13531

2860.16

ded by Lhe Managemont Further the manogerment has also confirmed that during tha
lransactions.

Qutstanding for following periods from dua date of Payment

Particulars oot t.2Yem 2.3 vam  Momtand Total
As at 31 March, 2024
) Outstanding dues of MSME Q767 18 052 - 330.37
{ii} Ouisianding dues of Others 1569.58 21.24 4.54 10,78 1506.55
(Lis! enclosad) Total 1507.65 21.42 5.06 _‘I-EI.TG 1944,92
As at 21 March, 2023
{i) Oulstanding dues of MSME 1484.49 a1z .84 - 1506.45
{i} Ouistanding dues of Olhers 1209.23 9.49 27.01 107.99 1353.71
N Tatal 2701,72 17.61 30.84 107.55 2860.16
O HNote Mo, -8
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advanca against Solo of Land - Urmila Devi Charilabie Socioty - 35.00
Advanco Fepm Customers (List Enclosed) 369 -
Statutory Liabilities Payabla
EPF Payabls (Pald on 130472024} 172 128
ESI Payatie (Poid on 13/004/2024) 0.0 o
TOS Payablo (Paid on 24M42024 & 25/04/2024) 6273 2407
GST Payabln (Fald on 180412024 & 27M4R024) 57.90 -
Cther Exprnscs Payablo
Salary & Dirotliors' Solory Payabla 7483 6221
Pmlassional Chargos Payabla "17 7.44
Audit Fee Payablo B.10 500
Coipoala Socisl Rasponsibility Expensas Payablo 0.00 558
280.95 141,70
Hote Ho, -9
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Prevision For Incomo Tax 620.50 340.00
Provision Foe Gratuity 353 -
Prarvigion For Lesve Encashment 247 -
53450 —_—3000

O

For VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

For WIP INFRATECH LIMITED

‘«a\eo‘ﬂ\’@' alman
\s W o
? e \,vaﬂ/ o‘%ﬁw <&
'7"\’&"4 avt Walerg




v
%
%
A@NQ‘ G@@ %
7 %
e 7
&, N\ %
A, LAk peally . V% v
AN § Lid)
.Z.u_ A
* -
‘pr YoBienurdIAn 104 PRI = Ve %
QILINIT HOIIVYHANI dIAA tog
“©
v
"s19ssy ajqibueiu) pue Juawdinb3 ¢ ueld ‘Apadaug SN jo uoyenpass fue suop jou sey Auedwo?) Jeak ey Suunp eyt
08'SE} GE'6ZE Ya'LES - L£'69 2Z'28P £0°H98 = 95T 10°865 2235 SNOfADSS
BEGZE 06'L6Z SZZL9 - 1.5'00L PYLES SLbLE - LL'ES £0'198 jejot
85°LL 9E'9 26k - ez’s 09 a1 - - ezel aemjos g9
sjossy a|qtBueiy)
6L'g gE0L 2ebe - A L0°LE (-p4 2 - ErZ oz'e spowdinbg expO reyIp
¥2'as azes 60’89 - ¥501 6515 oE'ozZL - 159 GLEIL AIBUjIRI B JUBlY 4
S5°EEE §L'56¢1 SEESh - AN 6209 66°'8F9 - gise ¥E'ELY SARPA 0N €
BLS) 'L op'Gee - Z6¢ gh'se Ye'LS - 800 -r A 1] SaINiK g uniwung 4
s09 02's ;1A - EL'y 9802 6Y°0E - 88°€ 09'9% dojde ¢ sondwon %
EZOTEQ'IE ¥e0Z'e0'Le YZOTEOLE HY3A EZOZE0IE VZOTED'LE EIDZTCO'LE
1y v  sY 01 dn Nolangaa JHL HO4d OL dJ4n LV S¥Y SHOW3TIa SNOMiagavy vy sy
o019 L3N NOILYIO=3ud34 HD 019 5S04 SUYINDiLuYd ‘ON'S
0} - "ON 230N
¥202 *HOUVIN ISLE LY SY SIISSY I1BIONVLNI ONY INIWAIND T LNYTd "ALNIL0NHd
{sye ug )

(OALIWIT BLYAIN YHNI AYHEIVA HOHEIA SIW S© umouy Al1auuny)
Q3NN HHILYHAN] dIAA SIN

O O




W VWP INFRATECH LINITED

(Formerly known as Wis VIBHOR VAIBHAY INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

- [T in Lakhs)
- HONCURRENT ASSETS
Nota No. - 11 As % 3=t March, 2024 As at 313t March, 1023
NON CURRERT RIVESTMENTS
Lvyesimaeni in Land 840.42 6342
Equity Shares of Vibhor Vabhay Infrahome Privala Limitod 150600 1500.00
Shares ol Incian Morcantie Cooperative Benk Limitad 5.00 500
Invasimant i Shargs 3.40 340
* Ivestmant in VWIPL BCPL - JV (Sharg 51%) 30.54 30.54
* Iwestmant in VWIP KR JV-{Sham 51 %) o007 0.08
* Invodtment i KIPL VWP JV-{Share 35 %) HIL HIL
*  invoatment by KVS JV-{Shar 36 %) o2 022
trrgstmant in Housa Property - Guest Heuso £01.80 641.60
tvostment in M50 504 -
Total 227444 226946
T ProftsLoss from VWIRL BOCPL - IV, VVIP KKR - JV, KIPL, - VWIP - JV & KVS - JV has et beon considered as balanca sheets of thesa firma has nol yet boen
finafizad,
Note Ha. - 12
OEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)
Defered 1ax i3 for by puting tha tax offect of ming ditferonce of Depreclation thal arises during the yoer 2nd rovesss insubsequent yoar.
Boring the yoar, deferted tax Assol of s, 7.25.8154 haa baen recagnised and cradited in the Statemont of Profit & Loss Account.
Optning Balanco . e o)
Dotemed Tax Asset £ {Liatiity) during tha Yoar 720 232 L
=
O . Total 4157 3431 =
it
Mola Ho. - 13 T
OTHER NOK CURRENT ASSETS [
Security Deposit £ Withheid  Retention Monay (Hat) L 41138 E
Deposh against Rent 418 052 é
Totat 30951 183 %
B of Security Dog Withhok/R Money aro subject to confirmation. S y Dop AithhokiR: Monay recosvrable and Fayable —
are netad off [2 5
CURRENT ASSETS ?
Nota No. - 14 [=]
INVENTORIES L
[Taken, Valuod & Certified by Lha & t of Tha Campany)
Cloting Work in Progross & Natorial ot Sita £300.45 250803
Total 4300.45 218808
Haterly al sllo is valued ot Cost Prico
Ciosing Work I Progross is valund o1 Cest Price.
Noto No. - 15
TRADE RECEIVABLES
{To tha axtant consldesrad good)
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considened good Ir21.84 384578
O Doubtful . .
{List enctosed) ar21.84 2685.78
Less: Provision for doubtiud trade rocelvables b I B4 - 3885.76
Balancos of troda recotvablos ara subject to confimation Tatal A721.84 3685.78
Trado R agoing {A3 107d by tho Managemont)
Particulars Outstanding for following perods from duo data of Paymant
Lessthan6 6 Monlhstot Morathan 3 yeacs
Haonths Yoar 1¥ear-2yoar 2 Year-3yoar
As at 31 March, 2024
M Undisputed Trade Raceivablas - considered good q24597 20320 0.9 13163 . IR
M Lndi d Tinde Receivablos - considansd Doubtful - - . . - -
() Oisputed Troda Receivablos - considared good - - . - -
(v) Bisputed Trada Receivablas - ¢ ored Doubif = = = M - -
Yotaf SL.'LBT 29_3.!8 5';.93 13_._88 - A721.84
As at 31 March, 2023
o 1 P Trade & - d good 330480 24048 13168 - . 5T8
@ p Trada R - b - - - - . -
(@)  Disputed Trado Rocoivables - considentd good - . - . . 6\
(v} Disp Trada Recolvablas » Jdaned Doubti . . . . . Q
Tota! 230450 240,48 131.64 = - JAALTS

subject to confimmalion, Further managemant has 8150 confimad that dudng tho year no company

IP Infratech Lid.
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M/ VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

[Fermerly known as h's VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

- Note No. - 16

O

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in Hand inclduing Improst

Fixed Dopesi with Banks held as Margin for Bank Guaraniee and Olher Commitments

Siate Bank of india, O
[CICI Bank Ade -8140-Share Application Maney

Note Mo, - 17

SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Sundry/Othar Advances (List enclosed)
Loans and Advances io KMP & Refatod Parties :
Secured, considerpd good
Unsecured, consldered good
Boubitful
(LIst enclosed)
Less: Pravislon for doubtiu) Sundey § Other Advances
Loans and Advances 1o Suppliers & Qthers
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Boubiul
{LIs! enclosed)
Less: Provision for doubtut Sundry / Other Advances

{€1n Lakks)
As at 31t March, 2024 As at st March, 2023

46.83 929

2851.74 2644.63

2040 12.78

D28 .
Total 2919.25 2666,71
% %

- - 0.31 1.50
- 150

- . - 1.50
100.00 571.51 29.69 480.88
57151 480.85

- .S - 480.68

100.00 Total 571.51 100,00 48237

Balances of Sundry/Ciner Advances ere subject te cenfirnation
In ther opinion &f Lhe beard of directors, the aggregate valuo of cuent 8ssels on reallzotion wil) not be less than amount at which Lhey aro staled in Lhe bolanco sheal.

Hote Ho., - 18
OTHER CURRENT ASSEYS

Accured Interest on FOR
TDS Recovarable from Parties
VAT under Prolast
55T Recoveratlo
TOSATCS
Incone Tax Refundabla
Prepaid Expenses

165.64
1218
15045
409.69
185.19
1096

Total 844,12

263

1128.35

| —
In the opindon of the board of dizectors, 1he eggregate valua of olhes curent Bssels on realization will not be tess than ameunt al which they aro slated In tho

batance sheet

For VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

e

we

i

0
e
eIV e

PY et N“e‘?b?gtm[)t




Mis VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
{Farmerly known as M/s VIBHOR VAIBHAY INFRA FRIVATE LIMITED)

'~

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Note No. - 19
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Contract Receipls
Sale of Material

Nolo No. - 20
OTHER INCOME
Interest {Received) on FDR
Profit from KVS (JV) - AOP
Miseellanecus Incoma
Unclaimed Income

y EXPENSES
Noto No. » 21
COST OF REVENUE OPERATIONS
Cost of Material, Gonstruction & Other Expenses (Net)

Note No. - 22

Fortha Year Ended
31st March 2024

19851.70
1836.53

Totaf 21488.23

148.71

0.22
273

Tota! 151.66

19929.34

Total 19529.34

CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS & STOCK IN TRADE

Opening Stock :-
Work in Progess & Materiat at Sita

Closing Stock :-
Work in Progess & Materal at Sila

Increase f Decrease In Finished & Semi-Finlshed Goods

Note No, - 23
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries
Direclors' Salary
Employers' Contribution to ESI
Employers’ Conatribution to PF
Staff welfate

2588.06

2588.06

430043

430045

Totaf «1712,38

137.48
95.25
0.12
10.25
4.49

Totnt 247,58

(¢ in Lakhs)

For tha Year Endod
3st March 2023

14703.27
3.90

14707.16

14252.66

14252.66

1063.06
1063.06

2588.06
2588.06

-1525.00

135.57
84.00
0.17
6.85
3.65




Ms VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
{Fermerly known as Mis VIBHOR VAIBHAY INFRA PRIVATE LINITED)

{€in Lakhs)
Forthe Year Endopdd Forthe Year Ended
Note No. - 24 31st March 2024 Jfst March 2023
FINANCE COSTS

Bank Charges,Commisslon & Interest 331.48 23.07
Intergst on Government Dues 1.78 5983
Interest {Pald) to Unsecured Loans & Others 17.24 0.64

Total 350.50 237.64

Note No, - 25
OTHER EXPENSES

Rent 120 1.20
Prinling & Stationery 538 7.62
Travelling & Conveyance 2165 28.08
Postage, Courier, Telephone, Intzmel & Mobile Charges 141 1.64
Efeciricity & Water Charges 5.42 247
Lega! & Professional Charges 155.80 116.04
Fees & Taxas 6.32 4,87
Computer Repalr & Maintenance 748 1.3
Repair & Malnlenance 2851 4.50
Miscellangous Expenses 5.34 246
Interest {Reversed) on FDR 89.33 -
Audilors' Remuneration 9.00 6.00
Charity & Donalicn 0.53 3.85
Corporate Social Responsibllity Expenses 19.50 14.56
Busingss Promotion 3.16 1.49
Feslival Expenses 23 240
Vehicle Running and Mainlenance 4.51 8483
Insurance 7.54 83
GST, VAT & Service Tax (Pald) 15.83 8.0
Interest Paid on Delayed Payments cn MSME 0.56 -
Fine & Penalty 1.72 172
Tender Expenses 5.69 0.58
Loss from VVIP KKR Jv - 0.02
Loss from VWIP BCPL JV - - __ 232

Totat 373,29 224.16

For VVIP INFRATEGH LIMITED o &
-
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M/s VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
{Formesly known as M/s VIBHOR VAIBHAYV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN : U520 UP200 PLCE36919

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(% 1n Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS 31st Mar 2024 315t Mar2023
(Rs.) (Rs.)
A CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES;
Net profitf {Loss) before tax 23504 132838
Less: Interest Roceived 14871 99.57
LesseOther Adjustments 114.16 -
Add: Non Cash Iteot Items
Depreciation 100.61 §9.37
Interest Paid 350.50 237 64
Operating Profit/{Loss) before Working Capital changes 2539.19 153582
djustm on
Increasef {Decrease} in Trade payables 01524 B39.73
Icrease/ (Decrease) nother current liabilities & Proviskons 23542 2583
Ircrease/ (Decrease) in Short term borrowings 145264 431.78
{Increase)f Decrease in Inventories ~171238 -1525.00
(increase)/ Decrease In Trade Receivable -36.08 -1497.19
{Increase)/ Decrcase in Other Current Assels 25773 1174
({Inexeasa)f Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances 59,14 55173
NET CASH FROM/{USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 174213 480.13
Less - Direct Taxes Paid (et of Refund) 451,70 527
1290.43 12785
B ASH FLOW FROM I ITES:
Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment and Capital WIP 31 26296
Purchase / (Sale) of Investments =199 2m
Interest Received 481 9957
{Increase)/ Decrease in Other Non Current Assals 102.93 638,95
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 193.59 477,58
Cc H W {Fl ) H
Increase/ (Decrease) in Long term borrowings -13628% 33038
Increase/ (Decrease) in other long term liabilites 13164 4926
Increase/ (Decrease) in Equity Share Capital & Securities Preminm 04512 -
Decrease in Reserves & Surplus duc fo bonus issue 16451 -
Interest Paid -350.5) -237.64
NET CASH FROM/{USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 123147 14200
Net Increasef(Decrease} in Cash & Cash Equivalenls [A+B+C) 25255 747.44
ET INCREASE/DECRE IN CASH & CASH EQLHVALE
Cash and cash eguivalents as at beginning 2666.71 191927
Cashand cash equivalents as atend 291925 266671
NET INCREASE/[DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 25255 7474

FOr VVIP Infrat chiLtd,

Forvvip
For Rishi Kapoor & Company vw INF RATECH UM'TED M ;
Chartered Accountants 3
FRNo.005615 g f Dfrec[or
{Valbhav Tyagl)
{Rishi Kapoor) Chalmdn & Dlmctbu_r Managing Diroclor
Partner Dia : 0083423
M.No.075483 For VVIP Infratech de WIRINFRRHICH LIMITED
Place: Ghazfabad Company ! al) {Prashant Wahl) CFO
Da::: :25(0&:20;4 Company Socroatary CFQ

IUDIN: M.No. ACS-T0481  PAN :AAWPW2319G
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VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
{Formerly known as VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EOR THE
YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2024

Note No:26

A. Significant Accounting Policies

1. Basis of accounting:-
A) These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India {Indian GAAP) including the Accounting
Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention on accrual basis.

B) The name of subsidiary companyand details of holding therein is as under :

Subsidiary Company Country of Incorporation Percentage of Holding

VibhorVaibhavInfrahome Private Limited India 90.02 (%)

2. Revenue Recognition :-
Expenses and Income considered payable and receivable respectively are accounted for on
accrual basis except discount claims, rebates and refirement benefits which cannot be
determined with certainty during the period.

3. Property, Plant &Equipment’s:-
Property, Plant &Equipment'sare stated at their original cost of acquisition including taxes,
freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation of the concerned
assets less depreciation tili date.

4. Depreciation :-
Depreciation on Property, Plant &Equipment'sis provided to the extent of depreciable

amount on the Written down Value (WDV) Method. Depreciation is provided based on
useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2@:]3

@ d
5. Investments :- > _ ef"\»
Investments are stated at cost. N @55‘
For VWIP INFRATECH LIMITED éz,{s
O

rq et wagg @W‘M




6. Inventories :-
Inventories L.e. closing work in progress and material at site are valued atcostprice; The
Inventories are valued, verified and certified by the management of the company.

7. Retirement Benefits:-
The provisions of retirement benefits in the form of Leave Encashment as well as Gratuity
are accounted for.

8. Taxes on Income:-
Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current
accounting period in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

O 9. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:- (As-29)

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events

and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Contingent Liabilities is disclosed in Notes to the account for:-

() Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the
control of the company or

(if) Present Obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation cannot be made.

(iii) Bank Guarantee Rs. 42,30,53,498/-

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement since this may result in the

recognition of the income that may never be realized.

General:
Except wherever stated, accounting policies are consistent with the generally accepted
accounting principles and have been consistently applied.

O (B) Notes on Financial Statements

1. The details of the pariies in the Form of MSME and Non MSME have been provided by the
Management. Further the management has also confirmed that during the period No
Company has been Stuck Off, from which the Company had done any transactions.

2. Previous years; figures have been regrouped/ recast to make them comparable with the
current period figures.

3. The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of Company and the company
has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipmeng and intangible ass%g, during the
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. No proceedings have been initiated / or are pending, during the year against the company

as at 31% March, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act,1988 and rules thereon.

. The company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or in the payment of interest to

their lenders.

. The company does not have any layer of companies.

. The Company has not done any arrangements as per section 230 to 237 of the Companies

Act, 2013.

. The Company does not deal in Crypto Currencies during the period.

. The Company has working capital limit and is required to submit statements with banks and

other financial institutions and as told and certified by the management of the company that
all the statements submitted by the company are in agreement with the books of account.

10.There was no fransaction that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the

period in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act.

11.Balances of Unsecured Loans, Other Long Term Liabilities,Long Term Provisons, Trade

Payables, Other Current Liabilities, Non Cuirent Investments, Other Non Current Assets,
Trade Receivables, Short Term Loans & Advances and Other Current Assets, Purchases as
well as Gross Turnover have been taken at their book value and are subject to confirmation
and reconciliation. Further opening balance of unsecured loan of M/s. Candella Enterprises,
has been transferred to unclaimed income. Further share of Profit / Loss from Partnership
Firm — M/s. VVIPL BCPL - JV, VWIP KKR - JV, KIPL WIP - JV and KVS - JV has not
been accounted for as it has not been finalized {ill date as told by the management of the

company.

12.The Company has neited off the certain amount payable with the Security Deposit

MWithheldMoney/Retention Money recoverable.
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13. Payments to Audifors:

Audifors Remuneration 2023-2024 2022-2023

Audit Fees 8,00,000/- | 5,00,000/-
Tax Audit Fees 1,00,000/- | 1,00,000/-
Total 9,00,000/- | 6,00,000/-

14.Loans and Advances are considered good in respect of which company does not hold any
security.

156.GST search was conductedduring the year 2018-19 against which certain amount was
deposited by the company, which was deducted from the parties from whom purchases
were made. However final GST liability has not been ascertained till date as told by the

O management of the Company.

16. Security Deposit & Sundry Payables includes sundry creditors of more than one year, which
were not paid due to dispute on account of GST Search.

17.Related Party disclosure

(I) Key Management Personnel
VaibhavTyagi — Managing Director
VibhorTyagi — Whole time Director
Praveen Tyagi — Chairman & Director
Virendra Kumar Tyagi — Director (Resigned on 13/12/2023)
Yogender Singh — CFO — (06/10/2023 to 07/10/2023)
Vishup Gupta — CFO - (07/10/2023 to 05/01/2024)
PrashantWahi — CFO — (W.e.f. 05/01/2024)
Man Mohan Goel- Director - (w.e.f. 06/10/2023)
Ruchika Jain — Director - (w.e.f. 06/10/2023)
AdarshRastogi~ Director - (w.e.f. 06/10/2023)
VarunAgarwal — Director - (w.e.f. 06/10/2023)
KanchanAggarwal — Company Secretary - (w.e.f. 06/10/2023)

SLONDINOGDE BN~
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(I1} Relative of Key Management Personnel

Smt. SumanTyagi

TyagReadymix Private Limited
VibhorVaibhavinfrahome Private Limited
VVIP Infrahome Private Limited

Centiral Himalayan farms Private Limited
Urmila Devi Charitable Society

WIPL - BCPL - JV
KVS - JV

KIPL WIP - JV

0. WIPKKR-JV
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18. Related Party Transactions :

Year EndedMarch 31,2024

Nature of Subsidiary | Associates/ Joint { Other Related Total
Transactions /Holding of ventures of Parties
the company | Company and its
subsidiaries or
holding
Revenue from -I- 102,82,70,142/- | 13,95,34,034/- | 116,78,04,176/-
Operations
Other Expenses 1,20,000/- 3,686/~ 1,15,83,767/- 1,17,07 453/-
Purchase of 1,27,024/- 79,38,617/- 1,64,97,656/- | 2,45,63,297/-
Goods, Services
&Othe Expenses
Advances Given 2,70,97,306/- -/- -- |  2,70,97,306/-
Advances Recovered 2,72,47,707/- -/- -/- 2,72,47,707/-
Advances Taken 1,52,66,388/- --| 10,57,52,998/- | 12,10,19,386/-
Advances Repaid 1,52,66,388/- -/-| 13,86,52,998/- | 15,39,19,386/-
Balances Payable to related parties are as follows:
As At March 31,2024
Nature of Subsidiary | Associates/ Joint | Other Related Total
Transactions [Holding of veniures of Parties
the company | Company and its
subsidiaries or
holding

Trade Payables -/- -/- 18,34,395/- 18,34,395/-
Others 9,18,367/- ~f- 25,51,020/- 34,69,387/-

O

20.0ther income include Rs. 1,48,70,985/- on account of interest on FDR (P.Y. Rs.

99,56,944/-)

21.Value of Imporis
Raw Material
Finished Goods

22.Expenditure in Foreign Currency

23.Earning in Foreign Exchange

Fos WIP INFRATECH LIMITED
rbciézb\cm-dg o ©

CFO
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Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
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25.All assets and liabilities are presented as Current or Non-current as per criteria set ouf in
Revised Schedule VI to the Company's Act, 1956 Notified by the Ministry of Corporate
affairs vide Nofification No. S0447(E) Dated 28th Feburary,2011 and SO653(E) Dated
30th March,2011. Based on the nature of operation of the company and realization from
the trade receivable, the company has ascertained its operating cycle of less than 12
months. Accordingly 12 months period has been considered for the purpose of Current
/Non-current classification of assets & liabilities.

In terms of Our Separate Audit Report of Even Date Attached.

Ny

Cor vip lﬂfﬁ!qch a'.-:d.

For Rishi Kapoor & Company
Chartered Accountants
FR.No: 006615C

For VWIP INFRATECH LIMITED

alrman

/‘@aging Director

“ (Praveen Tyagi)

(Vaibhav Tyagi)

Chairman & Director

Managing Director

DIN : 00834200

DIN : 01797558

For VVIP infratgeh Lid.
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[For VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
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(Kanchan Aggarwal)

(Prashant Wahi)

(Rishi Kapoor)

Company Secretary

CFO

Partner

M.No. ACS-70481

PAN : AAWPW2819G

M.No. : 075483

Place: Ghaziabad
Date :25/06/2024
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oAl TR SHIKAPOOR & COMPANY. "
NS L e e YCHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS: R
Plot No 10 Advocate Chambers, Raj Nagar Dlstrlct Centre
GHAZIABAD-201002
Phones: 0120-4371050, Fax: 4371070, 9910385499 (M)
Email: carishikapoor@yahoo.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO

THE MEMBERS OF

VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

(Formerly Known as VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

O REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of VVIP
INFRATECH LIMITED, formerly known as VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRA PRIVATE
LIMITED (“herein referred to as the holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss and the consolidated statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
and notes to consolidated financial statements including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2024, of its consolidated statement of profit and Loss, and
O consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provige=a basis for our

0
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 2 R‘foo
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
There are no such matters which are required to be addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s report including Annexure fo Board
Report, Business Responsibility Reporf, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information.

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility
is {o read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statemenis or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the
requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs,
consolidated profit/ loss and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial conirols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of




The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policiess used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
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auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and evenfs in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding company and
such other companies included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected fo outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India vide Order number S.0.849(E) dated 25"
February 2020 in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure — A & Note No.26, a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have heen i
appears from our examination of those books.




¢) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss and
the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consoclidated financial statemenis comply with the
applicable Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014;

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and on the basis of written representations received by the
management from directors of its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, as
on 31 March 2024, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in
India is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f} In our opinion, the internal financial conirols over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls are adequate in
commensurate to the size of the business.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to
us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and
its subsidiary company is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 187 of
the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation
given fo us;

i. The consolidated financial statement has no pending litigations as at 31
March 2024 which impacts the consolidated financial position of the
Group

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts during the year e 1 March
2024,




.

iv.

V.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company during the year ended 31
March 2024.There are no amounis which are required to be transferred o
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Subsidiary Companies
incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2024.

(@  The Management of the Holding Company represented that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested except joint ventures (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or any of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company or any of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management of the Holding Company represented that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Holding Company or any of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Parties (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e) , as provided under sub clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement.

The Board of Directors of the Group have not decl
dividend during the year as per section 123 of the Comg




vi. Based on our examination which included fest checks, the holding
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated from 7th April 2023 for all relevant transactions
recorded in the respective software and the subsidiary Company has also
used accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which
have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated from 15th April 2023 for all relevant transactions recorded in the
respective software.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled, we
did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.

For Rishi Kapoor & Company
Accountants
0. 006615C

Place: Ghaziabad
Date ; 25/06/2024

Partner
M.No.075483




Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

The Annexure A referred to in Independent Auditors Report to the Members of the
Company on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March
2024, we report that:

xxi. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi} and 4 of the Companies
(Audifor's  Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order’/ “CARO") issued by the Cenfral
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's
report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is
applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARC
reports.

Name of the entities CIN Subsidiary
Vibhor Vaibhav Infrahome | U70101DL2007PTC170268 Subsidiary
Private Limited

For Rishi Kapoor & Company

Date : 25/06/2024
Place: Ghaziabad

\ Partner
i No.075483




Mis VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

{Formerly known as M/s ViEHOR VAIBHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

- CIN : U45201UP2001PLC136919
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315t MARCH, 2024

{2 n Lakhs
AS AT AS AT
PARTICULARS HOTE NO. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
. EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1. SHAREHOLDER' FUNDS
a Share Capital 1 1838.77 €0.53
b Reserves & Surplus 2 9170.28 883979
¢ Money received against Share Warranls - - -
2. SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTMENT - - -
a Minorly Interest 451.94 43285
3. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
a Long Term Borrowings 3 1565.63 2303.14
b Deferred Tax Llabiliies (Nel) - - -
¢ Qther Long Term Llabiliies 4 3849.58 4271.76
d Long Term Provislons 5 224,53 -
4. CURRENT LIASILITIES
a Shoit Term Bomowings g 2866.35 1285.25
O b Trade Payables :- 7
{i) Total outstanding dues of MSME 464.26 1547.99
{l) Total outstanding dues of other than MSME 274255 2388.14
¢ Olher Cumrent Liabilities B 2836.34 2566.32
d Short Term Provisions 9 719.01 439.50
Total 26729.25 24545.26
I. ASSETS
1. NON CURRENT ASSETS
a Properly,Plani & Equipment and Intangible Assels
(i) Propetty,Plant & Equipment 10 586.02 486,75
{il) Intangible Assels - 567.43 57285
{ii}) Capital Work In Progress - - -
{Iv) Intanglble Assels Under Development - - -
{v} Fixed Assels held for Salg - - -
b Non Curent Investmenis 11 3582.90 36210
¢ Deferred Tax Assels {Nel) 12 B2.03 70.98
d Long Term Loans & Advances . - -
@ Qlher Hon Current Assels 13 427.74 513.57
2. CURRENT ASSETS
a Cument lnvestments - . -
b Inveniories 14 6938,11 638718
O ¢ Trada Regelvables 15 7626.68 G725.76
d Cash & Cash Equivalents 16 3165.12 2684.08
e Short Term Loans & advances 17 2563.35 2409.78
f Other Currant Assets 18 1189.88 1321.41
Total 26729.25 24545.26
Slgnificant Accounting Pollcles & Notes on Accounls 28

Interms of our report attached

Partner
M.No.075483

Place : Ghaziabad
Date :25/06/2024
UDIN :24075431BKB.JLCI5833

For WP MRFREreseinsE
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an & Director

For VWIP ?Hﬁ%‘%}fff Ltd For VIR INFRATEGS LIMITED
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Company Socretary
M.No. ACS-70481

FvaTpe Officer

"Lt buaiu
{Prashant Y¥ahi) CFO
CFO
PAN :AAWPW2919G




M VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
(Formorly known as Afs VIBHOR VAIBEHAY INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIH : U45201UP2001PLC136919
CONSOUIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

Placo : Ghazlabad
Dalo :250&72024
UDiIN ;24075481 BKBJLASEIA

gﬁ.@@\,}'&hs of the Board of Direcio

{¢1n Lakhe)
FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
PARTICULARS HOTE HO. ENDED ENDED
31.03.2024 31.03,2023
L COHTINUING QPERATIONS
1 REVENUE FROM CPERATIONS (MET) 19 28352.02 20889.94
2 Dtharincoma 20 22485 230.01
Talal Income Total 2B6T7.76 21120.25
3 EXPENSES
& Costof Revenus Operations 2 24780.51 16350.74
b Puwthasoof Slock In Trado . . .
€ Change in tnventores of Finished Goods, 22 82077 55404
Wik In Progross & Stock In Trada
d Empioysa Sonefit Exponses 2 520.80 471,55
o Financo Cosls 24 404.88 269.57
1 Depioclalon & Amortization Expenses 10 154.85 9920
G Olher Bxponses 25 803.21 589.42
Total 25543.64 19255.45
4 Profit £ [Loss) befom Excoptionsl & Extraordinary fler Tota) 273412 1854.50
& Tax {{1+2)}-3)
5 Excoplional llems - -
O B Profit / {Le45) bofore Extraordnary tems & Tax (4+5-5) Tetal 273412 1264.80
7 Exirocedinasy ltoms - -
B8 Profit { {Losa} before Tax (6+/-T) Total 273412 1864.80
2 TaxExponzos
a  Curon! Tax Expenses for Currend Year E92 50 439.50
b MAT Crodd (Wharo appleabie) . .
¢ Cumen! Tox Expensos Redaling o Priae Years 2581 167.53
d Hot Current Tax Expentes 710.11 807.03
o Delomed Tax Assot 12 11.05 -4.85
Total 708.06 691,63
10 Profit # [Loss) from Conlinuing Operations {8+5- 8) 2026.07 125313
10A Kuinorty tntormst 10.08 21328
108 Profit atiriastabio 1 Shamhoidors 2006.99 1580.41
ki Profi { (Loss) from Discontinuing Oparalions Beforn Tax - .
12 Tax Expoasas of Disconlinuing Oporations - -
173 Profit # (Lass) from Discontinuing Operations Afler Tax {11+412} - -
O 4 Prolit £ {Loss) For Lha Yoor {10+/-13) Totat 2005.99 1580.41
15 Eaming por Share {of R5.1- vach} :
a Basic . 18.45 26110
b Dauted 18.45 28110
Welghled Average Mumber of shares used in compoting
ecaming per share
a Basic{Nos.} 10316198.00 €05100,00
b Davted (Hes.) 10316198.00 §05300,00
Signilficant Accounllng Pollcies & Holes an Accounls 26
WO

PAntiatech Ltd.
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For VVIP Infatech-d.

Managing Direetor

For BVIPTEFRATECH LIMITED
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M/ VWIP INFRATECH LIMITED
(Fermerly known as M/s VIBHOR VAIBHAY INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED}

. HOTES ON ACCOUNT (¥ In Lakhs)
AS AT 31.0).2024 AS AT 34.03.2023
Hoto Ho, « 1 Humbor Amount Humbar Amont

O

A SHARE CAPITAL
& AUTHRURISED CAPITAL

Egquity shares of R3. 106 oach with voting dghls 25000000 2500.00 5000000 10003
Total 25004000 2500.00 4000000 400,00
b ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID UP CAPITAL
Euity shares of Rs. 10~ each with voting cights 18387700 1683877 05300 5053
Tetal 18387700 1638.77 £05300 60.53
RoetneGation of tha number of shares and amount ulstanding 81 the bags and gi tha end of the reporting perod:
Particulars Equity Amount Equlty Shares A t

Equity sharea oustanding al tha baginning of the year 605300 60.53 805300 60.53

Bonus Shara Issuad during tha year 16948400 1684.84 . -

Sharp issuod during the year 834000 83.40 - .

Share Bought back during Lha year - - - -
Equity sharps guslanding el the end of ihe yoor 18387700 16838,77 605300 60.53

1) Datads of shares beld by rach shareholder holding mong than 5% sheres:

As at 31 March, 2024 Asat 3 March, 2023

Class of shares f ama of sharnholdar Number of z:":ﬂ"g ": Humborof % holding In that
shares hold ha 32 shareshold  class of shares
o8
As Far Annexurn "A™ Attached
{5} Deta?s of share holdng of tha Promators:
As 2t 31 March, 2024 As at 3 March, 2023
% holding In % helding In
Hame of tho Promotar 33::‘:‘,:;; that class of (%} Change ::":T::"; ;; that class of {%) Change
ashires shares
Aa Per Anaexurs "B Altached

Tamms } righis attached te the oquity sharos

Tha Company bas only ond cfass of oquity shares having a par valua of Rs. 10/ per share, Al ha Equity Shares cary b Samo Bghts with rrspoct (o voting, dividends et
In the event of hauidation of tho company, the holders ef equily sharos wil be entied 1o receivo remaining assols of Lhe campany, afer diskibution of 51 preferential smounts.
‘Tha distribution will bo #n proportion 10 tha number of squity shares hold by 1ha shorehoiders.

For WIP INFRATECH LIMITED
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Mis WIP INFRATECH LIMITED
{Formorly known as N/s VIBHOR VAIEHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

. {¢ In Lakhs)
Nolo No.-2 As at 31st March, 2025 As at J1st March, 2023
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Shate Promlum Account
Opaning Balance 145272 1819.88
Add ; Share Premium Recelved during the year 266.88 387.16
Clkesing Balanca 1699.60 143272
Profit & Loss Account
Opaning Balanca 7407.07 4984.59
Less :
Transferred 1o Issue of Bonus Shares 1654.84 -
Provislon for Gratuity & Leava Encastiment
for Previous Years 230.54 -
Feas Paid for Increasa In Authorised Sh. Capital 18.00 -
Profitf{t.oss) on changa [n subsidiary - B42.07
5462.69 £026.66
Add ; Net Profit/ {Net Loss) for the year 2006.89 158041
Closing Balance 7470,68 7407.07
Tatal 9170.28 BE33.79
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Nolo Mo, 3
Hon Currant Current Non Current
o LONG TERM BORROWINGS Curcont Maturitios " ritics Maturitios Maturitios
Stecured Loans
Torm Loans
From Banks & Flnanclal Insttutions 321,39 472.18 213.28 670.00
{List Enclosed)
From Othors
From Deparimenis - - - 288.28
{List Enclesed)
Unsecured Loans
From Relaled Parties - 617,30 - 693.53
From Others - 476.14 - 651.32
{LIst Enclosed)
Total 321.39 1666.63 213.28 2303.14

In the opinlon of the Board of Directors, the company has uilized its borrowings fram banks, financial institutions and others purely for the
purpose for which It was taken.

Noto No, -4
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Secuiity Deposit & Sundry Payables 222193 1875.95
Solitaire Infrahome Private Limiled 1627.65 2394.89
(List enclesed) —_— —_—
Tatal 36849.68 4271.76
O Balances of Security Deposits & Sundry Payablas are subject o confirmation.

Hota:- The amount hold of Trade Payablas for defect liabilly period oulstanding as en 31st March 2024 & 31st March 2023 Jis regrouped to
Security Deposlts (Hold } under other long term fizbilities.

Holo Mo, -§
LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Provision For Employes Benefit Expenses 22453 - \:&.
Total 224,53 ﬂ
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Note Ho, -6
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Leans repayabla on Demand
Secured
From Bonks
State Bank of India 578.39
{Hypathecation of Steck and Book Debils)
1CICI Bank 1566.57
{Hypolhecation of Stock and Bock Debis)
Current Matusifies of Long Termn Bomowing Payabile with In ena year (Nota No -3) 321.39

Total 2B56,35
A
In the oplnion of the Board of Directors, the company has utilized I1s borrowings from banks and othor fnancial Instilutions purely
for the purpose for which It was takon,
Tha Boand of Direciors has informed that all statements submitted in tha bank ef financiat Instilutions are In agreemant wil

The Board of DIEAS S REMESUNT B BEhABE S RRRuY created, ”{iﬁ;‘%‘&i‘%‘f&?ﬁﬁn

g%\ww N> 7o Chalman oo g Ot

ks of accounts.
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MIs VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
{Formarly known ax Mis VIBHOR VAIBHAY INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

. (¥ kn Lakhs)
Mot No. -7 As at 315t March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
TRADE PAYABLES-BILLED
Trade Payables - cutslanding duos of MSME {List enclesed) 464.28 1547.99
Trado Payablas - outstanding dues of Qihers (Lis! enclosed) 2742.56 2388.14
Tolal 3208.83 3936.13

Balances of Trade Payables any subject to confimmation.

Tho delalts of the pasties In Lhe form of MSME and non MSHE had been provided by T Management.Ferther the management has alse confirmed (hat during
the year,No Company has beeq stuck off, from which Lha company has done any transactions.

The Board of Directors had Informed Lhal they had treated aceounling date as dua dale {or ageing purposa.
Trade Payables agelng schadule 3

QOustanding for followlng porlods from due date of Payment

Partlculars Lass thand Morce than 3
Yaoar 1-2Yoars 2-3 Yoars Yoars Tota)
As at 31 March, 2024
{} Cutstanding dues of MSME 463.55 018 0.52 - 46428
{ij Cutstanding dues of Qthors 222409 244,85 B.az 264.81 274258
{Ls1 enclased) Total ZEBLSS 244.83 B_.ES 264.61 1206.83
As at 31 March, 2023
i Outstanding duns ef MSME 1532.31 11.32 384 0.53 154759
{ Qutslanding duos ¢f Othess 1848.10 21.16 252.08 268.80 2358.14
Total 33741 32,47 255,52 269,33 2936.13
Q Note:- Tho amount bold of Trade Payables for dafecd Tabfity perfod oulstanding as on 31st March 2024 & 31st March 2023 is regrouped to Secuily
Deposits {Hold ) under olher long term Gabiles.
Hoto No. -8
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory Liabillies Payable
EFPF Payable 2.E8 227
ESt Payable 0189 o1
TD3 & TGS Payable 77.35 33113
GST Payable B7.78 -
Othor Exponsos Payablo
Salary & Blreclors’ Salary Payablo 120.18 52.93
Professienal Chames Payablo 4147 744
Telephons & Intemet Charges Payabla 0.54 015
Electricily Charges Payable 281 1.08
Audil Fea Payable 18,20 12.00
Corpotate Soclal Respoasibility Expenses Payable 000 5.50
HOFC Bank Limited, C/A - 246 {Book Overdrall) 54.44 -
Advance against Sale of Land - Unmita Devl Chasitable Sociaty - 35.00
Advanca From Custemers (List Enclosed) 2423.00 277553
Total — 203634 — T
tole Hy, -8
O SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provision For Income Tax 692.50 439.50
Provision For Graluity 1584 -
Provision For Leava Encashment 1067 -
Total T719.01 439.50
For W o
or WipP
INFRATECH LIMITED ae¥
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M VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
{Formerty known 83 Ws VIBHOR VAIDHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED]

NON CURRENT ASSETS (¥ In Lakhs)
© NeteHa.- 11 Az 21313t Marth, 2024 Az 2t 3931Mareh, 202
HOR CURAENT INVESTMENTA
kratimard inLand 6342 6342
Shares of lnkan Marcantla Cooperatve Bank Limked 5.00 500
kvestmand Jn Shares 40 240
breestmant in VWIPL BCPL - IV {Share 51%) ] 30548
Invratrment in WIP KKR JV-(Share 51 %) aor aca
Lrvestmant in VWIPL KVS JV (Shate J%) Q2 o
Freastmant in 1OPL VIR IV-(Share 35 %) ML KL
Wrvestmand Iy House Propsty - Gusst Hixina 5T 18 4]
Ervestmerd In Share Copltal of Soltaire lafmboma Privets Limad 197333 W
Frvastment i WVIP EMS latrabome (Partaershio Firm) - Share 10 (%) 83513 sag
I In Flot a1 5 - 243
lwvestmantin NSC 500 -
Yotal 331250 JIEZ.10
Prolt/ Lasa from VAIPL DOPL + JV, VWP KKR - JV, KIPL - VAP - JV & KVS - J\ has ot been d s Bal of thirsa frms hay not yet bean
piepoaied.
Hola No, = 12
DEFERAED TAX ASSET {HET)
Deletred tar i accounted for by computiog the 1ex affeet of ming dffetanca of Depreciiton that adses durng the yoar snd rnvsd Insslasquent year,
During th year, delerred tar Azsal of Rs. 41,05,238% hes been tecogrised and etodzed in the Statement of Proft & Lods Accoant,
Opening Balence ose i1l
Less.Dilference oh sceount of change In Subsiary . -135
Dalfzered Tex Assatf (Uabilty } churivng tha Year 1105 A A5
Toial 52.03 T75.58
- Hola No, =13
O DTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Daposk against Flat cries 35 335
Depost wih Aman Yeday LE ] 2
Dprash with Electicky Departmant 5747 STET
Deposl with KL 21.13 405
Sacurty Dapotk £ \Wizhheld £ RutenSon Moray (He) M 1138
Depost pgaimt Rerd FRT 052
Depisk with Juks Gupts Rent 0T .
Tolad £27.74 513.57
nummeramnem-ﬁmummmmnqmmedumm Secukty DapostaAiith My and Payibia
arm natad olf,
CUARENT ASSETS
MNola lo. =14
INVENTORIES
{Taken, Valued & Cartified by the Managemant of The Company)
Cloging Wik in Progress & Materlal a} 5y &T0597 587020
Land Parcals. £ 510,64
Tomd £3318.11 633T.18
Macarlal ol 3%a B valued at oyl Prics
Chtlg Wik In Progress b vilued st Cosl Price.
Hels Mo+~ 15
TRADE RECEIVABLES
{Ta tha axtent cortketnd goad)
Sacured, conticared good - -
Ursecured, conskierned good 82664 &T28.Ta
Doubthd - .
(List anclosad) TI28L8 L1t %]
Luss: Provision for doutithul trad s recotvables - TszaLa = L1r--X:|
O Balancoy of rade feCetrables mro subiect 10 covifrmation Tolad TE2B.LE ET25.76
Trada Recalvablet 1geing schedule {Ax 1014 by the Management
Pagticulars Ouistanding tor {eliewing perlods from doe date of Paymsnt
Lassthané & Monthsto Horm than 3 ysars Tata
Unbilled Mantht Yaas I¥errodyear 3 Vane-dyear
Az al 31 March, 2024 —
[0 Tracy Racah d pood IS fr20 s 505 13188 - vt ]
@ Uns d Trade Receivab ¢ Doubitd . . . . B .
(%) Oisputed Trade Recohabies - comklered pood - - - . - -
() Daputed Tricis Rocsvabi Keted Doubthd —_— : . . . -
Totad QQM &m 19126 5093 111,68 = T820 68
Asat 39 March, 2021
) Undsputed Trada i k gocd 303877 130884 24948 13188 - - 17l ]
(0] d Trade R ' Dottty - . . - - - -
(0 Dopded Trada Recehvabins - comakdered good - - - - - - -
) Ditputed Trade Rocsivabs Doutthd . —_— —_— . . . .
Total 038 7F 3108.84 14944 131.63 - - ..
Az lokd bythe J tha C: of Teade R, mm-qummr«mrmmmmomwmwmmwummm

has boan puck off, from which the comparny had mads any bantactions,

um;mmm:urmmurummmmmnsmnumhmammnmammmmuaml.ur:nzoz:h roiped as Tesdo Receivat

For VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED



M VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
{Formerly known as /s VIBHOR VAIDHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

{Cin Lakhs)
= Hota No, -16 As at st March, 2024 As at st March, 2023
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash ln Hand incldulng Improst 57.22 18.33
Fixed Deposits with Scheduled Banks asy8 35.78
Fixed Depaosit with Banks held as Margin for Bank Guarantes and Other Commilments 250813 2701.02
Balances wilh Scheduled Panks 184,00 128.83
Totaf 316512 2884.08
Hole No, - 17
SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES % %
Sundry/Clher Advances (List enclosed)
Loans and Advances to KMP & Ralated Parilos :
Seeured, consldend good - .
Unsecured, considered good 5.87 176.07 2085 502.40
Doubtful . .
{LIst enclosed) 176.07 50240
Less: Pmvislon for doublfid Sundry 2 Qlher Advancas - 176.07 - 50240
Loans and Advances to Suppliers & Othors
Secured, conskiored good - .
Unsecured, considered good 23.13 2387.27 7915 1907.38
Doubtiul - -
{List enclosed) nar.ev7 1907.38
Lass: Provision for doubtfil Sundry £ Qther Advances - 2327 - 1907.39
O 100,60 Totaf 256335 100.00 = %0978

Balancas of Sundry/Other Advances ore subject 16 confirmation
In tho opinton of iha board of directars, the eggregate valua of current assets on realizalion will net be less han amount al which thay are staled in the balance sheal.

Nols:- Tha amount of advanca of Unbilled Deblocs shown under Short term foans & sdvances as on 395t March 2024 & 31st March 2023 is rogrouped as Trade
Recoivables,

Hole Ho. -18
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Ascured Interest on FDR 22847 0987
Advance CSR Expenses 20.21 -
TDS Recoverable frem Parlas - 224
Sialf Advance 7.93 1057
VAT undes Prolest 12,18 20.94
GST Recoveratia 15132 324.14
TOS&TCS 47623 254,684
Incoma T Refundablo 2707 294.50
Prepald Expenses 14.47 424

Tatal 11589.88 1321.41
In the opinion of the board of directovs, the aggregato valuo of clher current assets on realization will not be less than amount al which they are staled kn the
balance sheot

(é)
N
For VP INFRATECH LIMITED A
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Note No.-19

M/s VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

{(Formerly known as Mis VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Gross Tumover
Add: GST

Less: GST

Note No. - 20
OTHER INCOME

Inlerest (Received) en FOR
Rent & Olher Charges (Received)
Interest {Received) on Electric Security

Miscallanecus Income
Unclalmed Income

Profit from VWIPL BCPL (JV} - AOP
Profit on Sale of Investmenl

EXPENSES
Note No, -21

COST OF REVENUE OPERATIONS

Cost of Material, Construction & Other Expenses (Nel)

Note No. - 22

For the Year Ended
31stMarch 2024

28352.92

28352.92

28352.92

157.37
61.02
1.60
0.22
273

1.90

Totat 224.85

24780.51

Total 24780.51

CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOQDS, WORK IN PROGRESS & STOCK IN TRADE

Oponing Stock :-

Opening Stock Including WIP

Less: Difference on account of change in Subsidiary

Closing Stock 3«

Closing Stock including WIP

Increase ! Decrease In Finlshed & Seml-Finished Goods

Note No.-23

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries
Directors’ Salary

Employers’ Conlribulion to PF
Employers’ Conlribulicn to ESI

Gealuity
Leave Encashment
Compensalion (Paid)
Slaff Welfare

Less ; Cost Allocated to Cost of Constructlon

ForAMVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
TR wvals

CFO

5876.20

5876.20

6705.57

6705.97

-829.77

5§45.46
203.25
17.20
2.0
20.68
12.06
5.00
10.61

816.27
286.41

Total 529.86

{¥in Lakhs)
For the Year Ended
Jst March 2023

20889.94

20889.94

20889.94

109.71
43.86
2.04
5.64
68.84
0.22

230.31

18390.74

18390.74

8223.34
2911.18

5312.17

5876.20
5676.20

-564.04



M/s VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

{Formorly known as Mz VIBHOR VAIBHAY INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

Noto No, - 24
FINANCE COSTS

Bank Charges,Commission & Interast
Interest on Govemment Dues

Interest (Paid) lo Unsecured Loans & Others
Flnance Charges

Inlerest (Paid) on Term Loan

Interest {Paid) on Debentures

Less : Cost Aliocated to Cost of Construclion

Noto No. - 25
OTHER EXPENSES

Rent

Stamp Duly (Paid) on Lease Agreement
Prinling & Stationery

Travelling & Conveyance

Postage, Courier, Telephone, Internet & Mobile Charges

Electricily Waler & Generator running Charges
Legal & Professional Charges

Rales & Taxes

Feas & Subscripllon

Computer Running Expenses

Repalr & Malnlenance

Misceltaneous Expenses

Rebale and Discount

Interest {Reversed) on FDR

Audilors' Remuneration

Charity & Donatlon

Comporate Social Responsibility Expenses
Business Promotion

Festival Expenses

Vehicle Running and Maintenance
Insurance

G3T, VAT & Service Tax (Paid)

Interest Paid on Delayed Payments on MSME
Fine & Panally

Tender Expenses

Premium on Redempltion of Debenlures
Amount Writlen Off

Loss from VVIP KKR JV & BCPL JV
Advertisement

Less : Cost Allocated to Cost of Construction

FO?WIP INFRATECH LIMITED
PG P o

CFO

For tho Yaar Endad
3istMarch 2024

332.53
48.22
36.43

6.89
14.32

438.48
33.50

Total 404.98

28.61

8.83
63.17
10.17
76.46

197.22

4.75
11.08

7.48
37.63

5.85
37.89
94.33
18.00

0.53
22.88
96.88

2.3

4.51
11.14
22.15

0.97

1.85

5.69

37.84
Total 803.21

803,21

{Z In Lakhs)

For tho Yoar Ended
31st March 2023

23215
35.97
23.92

D.82
31.70

313.00

637.56

367.99

269.67

24,23
7.93
11.81
78.67
9.18
7746
152.66
10.06
4.29
1.31
51.26
246
7.83

12.00
15.91
14.56
4,32
240
6.93
13.64
22.64

8.36
0.58
1.03
6.06
2.34
39.33
589.46
1.03
588.42




VIBHOR VAIBHAY INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45201DL2004PTC111989
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

{2 in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS 31stMar 2024 315t Mar 2023
Rs.) {Rs.)
A CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Not prolitf {Loss) after Interest and balore tax 2734.12 1864.80
Add: Profit on Loss of Change in Subsidiary - 842.07
Less:- Interest Received 158.98 111.76
Add: Hon Cash ltem ltoms
Depreciation 154.85 4261
Interest Paid 404.98 269.57
Other Adjustments 248.54 4.35
Operaling Profit!(Loss) before Working Capital changes 2B86.44 2911.64
Adjustments for;
Increasef (Decrease) in Trade payzbles : -7129.30 153.77
Increasef (Decreasa) in other current liabilities & Provisions 21.06 473
Increasef (Becrease) in Shoct Term Borrowings 167110 -1485,33
{Increase)f Decrease in Inventosdes -550.92 2550.99
{Increase)f Decrease in Trade Receivable -899.80 -1496.04
{increase)/ Decrease in Other Cument Assels 252.92 107.78
{Increase)f Decrease in Other Non Current Assels 85.84 6687.21
{increase) Decrease in Short Tenm Loans & Advances -153.57 2652.33
NET CASH FROM{USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2583.66 £6087.62
Less - Direct Taxes Pald {Net of Refund) 587.50 167.53
1596.16 £920.09
B CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment and Capital WIP -236.90 -178.59
Purchase / {Sale) of Investments -420.80 -2086.64
Decrease in Goodwill on account of Change in Subsidiary - 834.17
Interest Received 158.98 111.76
NET CASH FROMA{USED IN} INVESTING ACTIVITIES «500.72 =1319.31
c CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Ingreasef (Becrease) in Long term bomowings -737.51 -1966.76
Increasef (Becrease) in Share Capital & Securilles Premium 2045.12 -387.16
Decrease in Reserves & Surplus due ta banus issue -1694.84 -
Increasef {Decrease) in Cther Long Term Liabilities 2218 -1524.29
Interest Paid -404.98 -269.57
NET CASH FROMA{USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES =1214.39 =4147.78
Net Increasef/(Decreasa) in Cash & Cash Equivalents {A+B+C) 281.05 453.01
NET INCREASENDECREASE] IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Cash and cash equivalenis as at beginning 2084.08 2431.07
Cash and cash equivalents as at end 3165.12 2884.08
NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 281.05 453.01

The accompanying notes form an Intagral part of the Flnancial Statements
As per our report of even dote attached
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VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
(Formerly known as VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRA PRIVATE LIMITED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2024

Note No: 26

A. Significant Accounting Policies

1. Basis of accounting:-
A} These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
O the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India {Indian GAAP) including
the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis.

B) The name of subsidiary company and details of holding therein is as under:

Subsidiary Company Country of Incorporation Percentage of Holding

Vibhor Vaibhav Infrahome Private Limited India 90.02 (%)

2. Revenue Recognition :-
a) VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

Expenses and Income considered payable and receivable respectively are accounted for on
accrual basis except discount claims, rebates and retirement benefits which cannot be
determined with certainty during the period.

b) VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRAHOME PRIVATE LIMITED :

O The company is having six projects namely VVIP Addresses, VVIP Assets, VVIP Style VVIP
Mangal, VVIP Nest and VVIP Niwas.
VVIP Addresses, VVIP Assets, VVIP Style:
During the year, sales of the above said projects are recognized on actual basis, as the
construction on the project has been completed except certain work, i.e., finishing/interior
work of the flats. Up to 31.03.2018 sales were booked on application of percentage
completion method after reducing EMI paid to customers.
During the period, Sale deeds of certain flats/shop/Plots are made. However proceeds/sales
of these was booked through application of Percentage completion method .
VVIP Mangal, VVIP Nest and VVIP Niwas :

Sales are booked on the basis of application of percentage completion method (POCM).

7 For YVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
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. Property, Plant &Equipment’s:~

Property, Plant &Equipment’s are stated at their original cost of acquisition including taxes,
freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation of the concerned
assets less depreciation till date.

. Depreciation :-

Depreciation on Property, Plant &Equipment's is provided to the extent of depreciable
amount on the Written down Value (WDV) Method. Depreciation is provided based on
useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,

. Investments :-
Investments are stated at cost.

. Inventories :-

a)VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
Inventories i.e. closing work in progress and material at site are valued at cost price; The
Inventories are valued, verified and certified by the management of the company.

b) VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRAHOME PRIVATE LIMITED :

Inventories are valued as under:-

VVIP Addresses, VVIP Assets, VVIP Style :

Inventories of unsold flats and revalued on cost price including direct & indirect expenses as
the major portion of the job is completed.

VVIP Mangal, VVIP Nest and VVIP Niwas :

Inventories of Raw Materials, components, construction materials, stores, spares and loose
tools and are valued at cost. Project and Construction work in progress are valued at cost
including direct & indirect expenses till a major portion of the job is completed and thereafter
also at cost. Cost includes direct & indirect expenses includes applicable borrowing cost
vide policy relating to borrowing costs.

Property/developed land are valued at cost. Cost includes direct & indirect expenses and
also includes applicable borrowing cost vide policy relating to borrowing costs.

. Retirement Benefits:-
The provisions of retirement benefits in the form of Leave Encashment as well as Gratuity
are accounted for.

. Taxes on Ihcome:-

Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current

cod ing period in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961,
&
C-
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9. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:- (As-29)

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events

and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Contingent Liabilities is disclosed in Notes to the account for:-

() Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the
control of the company or

(i) Present Obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation cannot be made.

(iii) Bank Guarantee Rs. (42,30,53,498/- + 56,38,948/-) = Rs. 42,86,92,446/-

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement since this may result in the

recagnition of the income that may never be realized.

General:
Except wherever stated, accounting policies are consistent with the generally accepted
accounting principles and have been consistently applied.

(B)Notes on Financial Statements

1.

The details of the parties in the Form of MSME and Non MSME have been provided by the
Management. Further the management has also confirmed that during the period No
Company has been Stuck Off, from which the Company had done any transactions.

Previous years; figures have been regrouped/ recast to make them comparable with the
current period figures.

a) VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED

The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of Company and the company
has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the
period.

b) VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRAHOME PRIVATE LIMITED :

The title deeds of immovable properties of Project lands except Project land of VVIP
Mangal, are held in the name of Company. Title deeds of Project lands of VVIP Mangal are
in the name of Tyag Landscape Private Limited on which joint venture was made to develop
the project between both the companies. Further, the company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the period.

No proceedings have been initiated / or are pending, during the year against the company
31%t March, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions

For wip INFRATECH LIMITED
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5. The company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or in the payment of interest to
their lenders.

6. The company does not have any layer of companies.

7. The Company has not done any arrangements as per section 230 to 237 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

8. The Company does not deal in Crypto Currencies during the period.

9. a) WIP INFRATECH LIMITED
The Company has working capital limit and is required to submit statements with banks and
other financial institutions and as told and cerlified by the management of the company that
all the statements submitted by the company are in agreement with the books of account.

b) VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRAHOME PRIVATE LIMITED :
The company has no working capital limit and thus is not required to submit statements with
banks and other financial institutions.

10.There was no transaction that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
period in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act.

11.Balances of Unsecured Loans, Other Long Term Liabilities, Security Deposits
(Received)/(Paid), Deposit against Joint Venture (Received) / (Paid}, Long Term Provisons,
Trade Payables, Other Current Liabilities including Advance from Customers, Non Current
Investments, Other Non Current Assets, Trade Receivables, Short Term Loans & Advances,
Other Current Assets, Direct Cost (Purchases), Other Income as well as Gross Turnover as
per GSt, GST Recoverable / Payable have been taken at their book value and are subject to
confirmation and reconciliation. Further opening balance of unsecured loan of M/s. Candella
Enterprises, has been transferred to unclaimed income. Further share of Profit / Loss from
Partnership Firm — M/s. VVIPL BCPL - JV, WIP KKR - JV, KIPL WIP - JV, KVS - JV and
M/s. VVIP EMS Infrahome has not been accounted for as it has not been finalized till date
as told by the management of the company.

12.VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED:
The Company has netted off the certain amount payable with the Security Deposit AWVithheld
Money/Retention Money recoverable.

13. VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRAHOME PRIVATE LIMITED :
As told by the management of the company, in some cases company is charging/depositing
GST on actual amount received from customers basis and in some cases GST is being
charged/deposited on due basis. Further No GST has been charged on fresh sales on
certain projects as the management has told that project has been completed except certain
work, i.e. finishing/interior work of the flats is pending. However no reconciliation of GST is

= !
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14, VIBHOR VAIBHAV INFRAHOME PRIVATE LIMITED :
Cost of Land, Construction and its other expenditure has been arrived by adding purchases,

Labor Charges,
project.

Finance Charges for Project and Other expenditure directly related to the

15. Payments to Auditors:

Auditors Remuneration 2023-2024 2022-2023
Audit Fees 16,00,000/- | 10,00,000/-
Tax Audit Fees 2,00,000/- | 2,00,000/-

Total 18,00,000/- | 12,00,000/-

16.Loans and Advances are considered good in respect of which company does not hold any

‘O security.

17.VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED
GST search was conducted during the year 2018-19 against which certain amount was
deposited by the company, which was deducted from the parties from whom purchases
were made. However final GST liability has not been ascertained till date as told by the
management of the Company.

18.VVIP INFRATECH LIMITED:
Security Deposit & Sundry Payables includes sundry creditors of more than one year, which
were not paid due to dispute on account of GST Search.

19.Related Party disclosure
() Key Management Personnel

TOONOND O AN

Vaibhav Tyagi — Managing Director

Vibhor Tyagi — Whole time Director

Praveen Tyagi — Chairman & Director

Virendra Kumar Tyagi — Director (Resigned on 13/12/2023)
Yogender Singh — CFO — (06/10/2023 to 07/10/2023)
Vishup Gupta — CFO - (07/10/2023 to 05/01/2024)
Prashant Wahi — CFO — (W.e.f. 05/01/2024)

Man Mohan Goel— Director - (w.e.f. 06/10/2023)

Ruchika Jain — Director - (w.e.f. 06/10/2023)

Adarsh Rastogi- Director - (w.e.f. 06/10/2023)

Varun Agarwal — Director - (w.e.f. 06/10/2023)

Kanchan Aggarwal — Company Secretary - (w.e.f. 06/10/2023)




(1) Relative of Key Management Personnel
1 Smt. SumanTyagi
2 Tyag Readymix Private Limited
3 Vibhor Vaibhav Infrahome Private Limited
4, WVIP Infrahome Private Limited (Luck Real Properties Private Limited)
5. Central Himalayan farms Private Limited
6
7
8
9

Urmila Devi Charitable Society
VWIPL-BCPL-JV
KVS —JV
. KIPL VVIP - JV
10. WIP KKR -JV
11.  Tyag Readymix
12. Tyag Landscape Private Limited

20.Related Party Transactions :

Year Ended March 31,2024

Nature of Subsidiary | Associates/ Joint | Other Related Total
Transactions {Holding of ventures of Parties
the company | Company and its
subsidiaries or
holding
Revenue from -/- 102,82,70,142/- | 13,95,34,034/- | 116,78,04,176/-
Operations
Other (Rental) Income -/- 3,00,000/- 2,40,000/- 5,40,000/-
Other Expenses -f- 3,686/~ 1,15,83,767/- 1,15,87,453/-
Purchase of -/- 79,38,617/- 3,49,86,290/- 4,29,24,907/-
Goods, Services
&0the Expenses
O Advances Given -/ -/ 9,23,16,840/- | 9,23,16,840/-
Advances Recovered -/~ -I-| 15,40,47,000/- | 15,40,47.000/-
Advances Taken -/- --1 16,19,82,721/-| 16,19,82,721/-
Advances Repaid -/- - 16,22,50,239/- | 16,22,50,238/-

Balances Payable to related parties are as follows:
As At March 31,2024

Nature of Subsidiary | Associates/ Joint | Other Related Total
Transactions {Holding of ventures of Parties
the company | Company and its
subsidiaries or

holding
Trade Payables -/- ~f- 6,22,60,458/- | 6,22,60,458/-
-/- -- 1 25,561,020/ \.}84,69.387!-

For\wip INFRATECH LIMITED
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22. Other income include Rs. 1,57,37,479/- on account of interest on FDR (P.Y. Rs.

1,09,71,464/-)

23. Value of Imports
Raw Material
Finished Goods

24. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

25, Earning in Foreign Exchange

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

26. All assets and liabilities are presented as Current or Non-current as per criteria set out in
Revised Schedule VI to the Company's Act, 1956 Notified by the Ministry of Corporate
affairs vide Notification No. SO447(E) Dated 28th Feburary,2011 and SO653(E) Dated 30th
March,2011. Based on the nature of operation of the company and realization from the
trade receivable, the company has ascertained its operating cycle of less than 12 months.
Accordingly 12 months period has been considered for the purpose of Current /Non-current
classification of assets & liabilities.

In terms of Our Separate Audit Report of Even Date Attached.

For Rishi Kapoor & Company

Chartered Accountants
FR.No: 006615C
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Aiman A&‘Q Direclor
{Praveen Tyagi) “" (Vaibhav Tyagi)

Chairman & Director

Managing Director

DIN : 00834200

DIN : 01797558
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